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GE’S MISSION

the art and science of medicine
medical and scientific problems
se post-graduate courses and encourage participation by family physicians
1ily medicine to undergraduate and post-graduate students
note and maintain standards in family medicine
urage and assist young people in preparing and establishing themselves in family practice
> the right of family physicians to engage in procedures that they are qualified to do
nd support academic posts and programmes in family medicine

acereditations in recognition of proficiency in family medicine
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PRESIDENT’S ADDRESS 2009

Welcome to the Annual General Meeting 2009.This is the election year and the membership will be electing the
office bearers of the Twenty-second Council. The Twenty-first Council’s term, 2007 to 2009, had been quietly
eventful. The report card is given below.

WORK OF THE TWENTY-FIRST COUNCIL
In the year under review, the College Council continued to make progress with the core activities of the College,
dealt with ongoing and new government policies in practice matters, as well as managed the administration of
the College Secretariat.

| would like to place on record my acknowledgment to the many family physicians who contributed as
members of the Council, trainers in the various educational programmes of the College, committees, and work
groups.Thanks are also due to the College Secretariat staff for their contributions in the administration of the
training programmes, the College Council meetings and matters arising, as well as developmental matters of the
College like the renovation of the College made necessary because of the MOH’s need for space.

College’s core business
The following activities were dealt with through the office of the Executive Director, the Institute of Family
Medicine, and the College matrix administrative structure.

(1) Singapore Family Physician and Family Practice Skills Courses. In the two years, 5 issues of the Singapore
Family Physician were produced. Each carried a Family Practice Skills Course aimed at providing the
continuing professional development of our family physicians.

(2) GDFM,MMed (FM), FCFP programmes.These programmes were conducted through the Institute of Family

Medicine.

(a) The Graduate Diploma in Family Medicine.We had an enrolment of 100 doctors in 2008 and in the
new batch for 2009-201 | we have an enrolment of |01 doctors.

(b) The MMed (FM) programmes.The College was directly involved training the Programme B candidates
with the assistance of the training faculty from the Department of Family Medicine and Continuing
Care, Singapore General Hospital, and also contributions from colleagues in the other hospitals. We
had an enrolment of |3 trainees in the programme for 2008.The College also co-ordinate the group
teaching sessions for the combined Programme A and Programme B trainees. In 2008, there were 33
trainees in Programme A.

(c) FCFP Programme.This is a two-year programme. In 2008, 14 trainees registered. From the 2007 batch,
9 will be sitting for their Exit Examination in July-August this year.

Practice related matters feedback

In the term of office of the Council, College participated in the feedback on the following Government / MOH
matters: (1) The HIN1-2009 Influenza outbreak pandemic preparedness, (2) Medical Registration Act, (3) Foreign
graduates direct entry into the proposed Family Physician Register, (4) Integration of health care, (5) Aesthetic
practice oversight, (6) Family Medicine training scheme for conditional registration doctors, (7) Mental Capacity

" Bill,and (8) Coroners’ Bill.

College administrative matters

The College administration functioned well with the matrix organization of activities headed by the Executive
Director and Honorary Secretary. In the year under review, the College tenancy agreement with MOH was
extended for another three years and renovation was required because of the need to return part of the space
occupied by the College to MOH.A College Building Committee was also formed.The administration of JCFMT
was handed back to MOH.

TASKS OF THE INCOMING COUNCIL

The important tasks for the incoming Council among others will be: (1) the continuing effort to strengthen the
recognition of the equitable worth of family physician by the public, press, policy makers, and profession; (2) the
setting up of the accredited modular course programme for senior family physicians to meet the requirements
of the Family Physician Register;and (3) the preparation and operational development needed for the continued
implementation of the right siting of patients.

A/Prof Goh Lee Gan

President, 21st Council (2007-2009)
College of Family Physicians Singapore
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REPrORT OF THE 21sT CouNcIL (2007-20009)

FOR THE PERIOD 1 APRIL 2008 - 31 MARCH 2009

/' \ JAY)

'l'\\ i\
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(Standing L-R)
Dr Wong Tack Keong Michael, Dr Pang Sze Kang Jonathan, Dr Ee Guan Liang Adrian, Dr Eu Tieng Juoh Wilson, Dr Chow Mun Hong

(Sitting L-R)
Dr Rukshini Puvanendran, Dr Lee Kheng Hock (Censor-in-chief), A/Prof Goh Lee Gan (President), A/Prof Cheong Pak Yean (Vice President),
Dr Cheng Heng Lee (Honorary Secretary), Dr Lim Fong Seng (Honorary Treasurer), Dr Ng Chee Lian Lawrence (Honorary Editor)

(Not in photo) Dr Lew Yii Jen

The 21st Council was formed following the Annual General Meeting and election of office bearers of the Council and its
members on |8th August 2007.
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ACADEMIC PROGRAMMES: RECIPIENTS OF AWARDS/GRADUATES (2008)

Graduate Diploma in Family Medicine

The Graduate Diploma in Family Medicine (GDFM) is a vocational training certification for primary care doctors. The aim of
this 2-year part-time trainee programme is to train primary care doctors to practise Family Medicine at an enhanced level to
meet the needs of the child, the adolescent, the adult and the elderly. The course emphasises on basic clinical diagnostic and
management skills essential to general practice.

The programme is planned to accommodate the busy doctor’s schedule as almost all courses that require in-person attendance
are conducted outside regular office hours.The course consists of the following:
= 8 modules of Family Medicine Modular Course (FMMC) with each comprising of 4 workshops (2 1/2 hrs each), |
tutorial (| hr each), online case studies and multiple choice assessments
» 4 Practice Management Courses (hrs in all) and | elective Family Practice Skills Course (6 hrs)

The examination is conducted by DGMS, NUS and consists of :
w  Written paper - Applied Knowledge Test /MCQ (2 hrs); Key Features Problems Paper (2 hrs)

= Skills Assessment in the Objective Structured Clinical Examination (OSCE), (2 hrs)

The GDFM (Singapore) is recognised by the Singapore Medical Council as a registrable medical qualification.

The College would like to congratulate the following doctors who were successful in the 2008 GDFM examination.

l. Dr Chen Jer Shih 9. Dr Chua Yong Kwang Kevin

2. Dr Chew Ee Hern Kevin 10.  Dr Dana Elliott Srither

3. Dr Chia Wei Meng Vincent I'l.  Dr Espeno Richard

4. Dr Chin Siew Pang 12, Dr Florencio Ill Santos Pineda
5. Dr Chong Chun Choy Vincent 13.  Dr Gan OwTin

6. Dr Chong Yu Eric 4. Dr Goh Wee Teck Jerry

7. Dr Chua Shu May Celeste Ann 15.  Dr Han SuYin Jane

8. Dr Chua Swee Huat George 16.  Dr Han Wui Syen
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17.
18.
19.
20.
21,
22,
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24,
25.

26.

27.
28.

29.

30.
31
32,
33.
34.
35.
36.
37.
38.

39.
40.
41.
42.
43.
44.
45.
46.
47.
48.

Tutors of the Graduate Diploma in Family Medicine Programme
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Dr Henry Ramaya

Dr Ho Jee Meng

Dr Hoo Hui Kim

Dr Koh Jean Shen

Dr Koh Kian Hiong Derek
Dr Koo Wee Khiat Alvin
Dr Kwan Pek Yee

Dr Kwee Wee Hock David
Dr Lau Eng Kien

Dr Lau Yen Ning

Dr Lee Chu Ching

Dr Lee Eng Seng

Dr Lee Hon Yee

Dr Lee Kai Xin,

Dr Lee Mei Kam Irene

Dr LeeVan Hien

Dr Lee Wan Sian

Dr Leong Huey Yee Christine
Dr Leow Boon Teck

Dr Leow Cheng Gek

Dr Liang Clarence

Dr Liew Nan Piew Herman
Dr Lim ChuiYin

Dr Lim Liang

Dr Lim Mei Yuan Loretta
Dr Lim Shee Lai

Dr Lim Wee Peng

Dr Lin Kai Wei

Dr Ling Ning Margaret

Dr Lye Tin Fong

Dr Ma Sabai @ Lee Cheong Mei
Dr Ma Rachelle De Gracia

Dr Ang Choon Kiat Alvin
Dr Cheong Seng Kwing
Dr Chew Sze Mun

Dr Chia Tee Hien

Dr Chiam Yih Hsing John
Dr Chin Khong Ling

Dr Chung Wei Pyng Clara
Dr Farhad Vasanwala

Dr Koh Wee Boon Kelvin
Dr Leong Choon Kit

Dr Lim Fong Seng

Dr Lim Hui Ling

Dr Lim Jui Hon

49.  Dr Manimaran Sivasamy
50.  Dr Manojkumar Amarlal Kharbanda
51.  Dr Mary John

52.  Dr Mohd Saifuz Sulaimi
53. Dr Ng Cheow Hua David
54.  Dr Pang Wui Chi Jason
55.  Dr Phua Sin Ru

56.  Dr Pwee May Li Emily

57. Dr Quah Hock Aik Derek
58.  Dr Quek Peng Lim Timothy
59.  Dr Rebecca Martha jacob
60.  Dr Santiago Baby Liza

61.  Dr Seniati Rizalina Bahari
62.  Dr Seo Peng Sin

63.  Dr Sng Kong Chee

64.  Dr Sonia Haridas

65.  DrTan Gek Ngor

66.  DrTan Han Young Felix
67.  DrTan Hsin-Hui Louisa
68.  DrTan Sein Yong Esther
69.  DrTan Swee Meng Robin
70.  DrTang Ching Ching

71.  DrTay Siew Hua

72.  DrTay Wen Sien

73.  DrTeo Eng Swee Cuthbert
74.  DrVictor Risma Il

75. DrWee Wei Keong

76.  DrWong Pei Lin Suzanne
77.  DrWong Pey Gein Franco
78.  DrWoo Lan Choei

79.  DrWoon SinYong

80.  DrYap Tiong Toh
2008-2010:;

15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.

Dr Meena Sundram

Dr Ng Chee Chin David
Dr See Toh Kwok Yee

Dr Seow Hoong Wei Gabriel
Dr Shah Mitesh

Dr Sim Kok Ping

Dr Soh Soon Beng

Dr Tham Tat Yean

Dr Tsou Yu Kei Keith

Dr Wong Kay Wye Sabrina
Dr Wong Tien Hua

DrYap Soo Kor Jason
DrYong Molly
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Master of Medicine (Family Medicine)

There are currently two programmes to prepare doctors for the MMed (FM) examinations.

Programme A is a 3-year hospital and polyclinic based training programme generally for the younger doctors who have
been awarded the Family Medicine traineeship.Within the 3 years the trainee must also complete the Family Medicine Modular

Course conducted by the College.

Programme B is a structured training programme designed for mature practising family physicians in Singapore.

It is jointly organised by the College of Family Physicians Singapore and the Division of Graduate Medical Studies, National

University of Singapore.

This |-year part-time course provides a comprehensive and structured training programme for doctors working in primary
care who have completed the 8 modules of the Family Medicine Modular Course (FMMC) to prepare them to sit for the

MMed (FM) examinations.

The MMed (FM) examination is conducted by the DGMS, NUS and consists of:

= Written paper - MEQ, Essay, SAQ, Talk
« MCQ

w Slide interpretation

= Oral examination

" Clinical examination

The College would like to congratulate the following doctors who were successful in the 2008 MMed (FM) examinations.

M‘ ﬁ\mum:m

‘Siv_uonn 2

l. Dr Ang Seng Bin 13.
2, Dr Cheng Kah Ling Grace 14.
3. Dr Chng Shih Kiat 15.
4. Dr Goh Teck Kheng l6.
S. Dr How Chon How 17.
6. Dr Koh Mei Lin Jocelyn 18.
7. Dr Kwek Hwei Min 19.
8. Dr Low Wai Leong Jeffrey 20.
9. Dr Lee Bing Ming Simon 21.
10.  Dr Lee Eng Sing 22,
I1. Dr Lee Meng Kam Richard 23.
12, Dr Moey Kirm Seng Peter
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Dr Ng Lee Beng

Dr Ng Yok Leng Michelle

Dr Phua Cheng Pau Kelvin
Dr Ratnaporn Siriamornsarp
Dr Seah Ee-Jin Darren

Dr Somasundram Pushparanee
Dr Tan Hsien Yung David

Dr Tan ShuYun

Dr Tan Teck Shi

Dr Ting Sing Shing Jonathan
Dr Tiong Sylvia




Award of the Collegiate Membership of the College of Family
Physicians Singapore (MCFPS)

Cdm Fa,\mm

SINGAPORE

- °

Dr Farhad Fakhrudin Vasanwala
Dr Kiran Kashyap

Dr Tan Woei Jen Michelle

l. Dr Cheah Soon Min Benjamin 7. Dr Koh Tse-Chung Kevin
2 Dr Chew Eng Lee 8. Dr Lau Chin Hoh

3. Dr Chiam Yih Hsing John 9. Dr Lim Chien Wei

4. Dr Chong Tsung Wei | Dr Soo Wern Fern

5. |

6.

Albert and Mary Lim Award

The Albert and Mary Lim Award, first presented in 1974 in memory of the late Dr Albert Lim Liat Juay and his wife Mary Lim,
was re-instituted in 1999.

This award is the highest accolade bestowed by the College for contribution and services rendered to the College and the
discipline of family medicine.

The recipients of this award for 2008 was Dr Lee Suan Yew.
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CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT / MEDICAL EDUCATION

PROGRAMMES AND COURSES

The College promotes CPD and CME through the Family Medicine Modular Course, Family Practice Skills Course, MMed
(Family Medicine) Programme B, Family Medicine Membership and Fellowship Programme.

The Institute of Family Medicine, an organ within the College, plays a significant role in developing the contents and syllabi of
these programmes and courses.

During the year the IFM reviewed, updated and edited the notes as well as their e-learning components for Module 8, |,2,and
3 of the Family Medicine Modular Course to make them more relevant and user friendly to the course participants

The Family Medicine Modular Course consists of 8 modules of knowledge acquisition and is a requirement for doctors who
are preparing for the Graduate Diploma in Family Medicine(GDFM) Programme and the Master of Medicine (Family Medicine)
Programme A. Each year four modules are covered.

The notes for the modules are on the College’s e-learning website and can be downloaded by the Family Medicine trainees.
By having them online, the trainees can refer to these notes twenty-four hours a day

For the year April 2008-Mar 2009 there were 100 trainees registered in the GDFM course, 33 trainees in the MMed (FM) Prog
A, 13 trainees in the MMed (FM) Prog B and 14 trainees in the Family Medicine Fellowship Programme.

Family Practice Skills Course (FPSC)

During the year the College conducted five Family Practice Skills Courses.

The components of a skill course may include one or more of the following:
I. Distance Learning with verification (6 CME points)
2. Lectures (max of 2 CME points — | point for each seminar of 3 lectures)
3. Workshop (2 CME points)
4. Small group activities including clinical attachments, tutorials, ward-rounds
5. Assessments which can be written, oral, demonstration and/or clinical (for some courses)

A typical FPSC template is a course with six units of distance learning with verification of 30 MCQs, two seminars, and
one workshop conducted over two afternoon sessions e.g., one Saturday afternoon and Sunday afternoon or two Saturday
afternoons.

No. of Doctors Passed / Attended

_Event Title Distance Learning Seminars/Worlshop | Seminars/Workshop 2 |
FPSC 26 Passed: 388 Seminar 1:74 Seminar 2: 84

| Diabetes Mellitus: Revisited Failed: | Workshop [:57 Workshop 2: 17
FPSC 27
Communicable Diseases of Passed: 308 Seminar |:49 Seminar 2: 53
Community Importance Failed: | Workshop 1:35
FPSC 28 Passed: 284 Seminar |: 47 Seminar 2: 44
Asthma Update 2008 Failed: - Workshop 1:33
FPSC 29
Nutrition Updates:What Passed: 131 Seminar 1:98 Seminar 2: 83
You Need to Know Failed: - Workshop 1: 68
FPSC 30 Passed: 610 Seminar 1: 138 Seminar 2: 116
Gastrointestinal Diseases Failed: | Workshop 1: 107 B
FPSC 17 (Repeat) Passed: 463 Seminar 1:72 Seminar 2: 68
Dementia : 2009 Updates Failed: 6 Workshop: 1:72

Table 1. Participation at Continuing Medical Education Activities (Apr 08 - Mar 09)
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E-Learning

The E-Learning programme launched in 2003 has been incorporated into the GDFM training programme. An E-Learning
component for each module was introduced, consisting of therapeutic notes, case scenarios, assessment by MCQs and a case

review to be put up by a tutorial group.

Accreditation of core CME points

The College is represented by Dr Lee Kheng Hock and Dr Jonathan Pang in the SMC Maintenance of Competency Committee
and Dr Lee Kheng Hock and Dr Matthew Ng in the SMC CME Co-ordinating Committee. The College works closely with the
Singapore Medical Council to ensure that the quality of the CME events is acceptable. It continues to advise the SMC on the
accreditation of core family medicine CME events through its panel of FM CME advisors appointed by the College.

For Year 2008
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov  Dec Total
CORE 61 34 36 48 34 32 48 5 4l 18 48 19 475 |
NON CORE 20 2 10 2 T 3 9 730 56 0 206
REJECT 0 0 0 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 4 0 2
Total Application 8l 56 46 50 45 32 52 65 114 I8 145 19 723

Table 2. Overview of CME Applications Received in Year 2008

FM CME Assessors Board (2008-2010)

Chairman

Members

: DrTay Ee Guan
: Dr Pang Sze Kang Jonathan

Advisor

Dr Matthew Ng

Dr Tan Ngiap Chuan

Dr Loke Kam Weng

Dr Low Mun Heng Gerard

: A/P Cheong Pak Yean

Panel of FM CME Advisors (2008-2010)

O NS AW =

9.

10.
1.
12
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.

AJProf Lim Lean Huat

Dr Bina Kurup

Dr Chan Swee Mong Paul
Dr Chang MingYu James

Dr Chang Tou Liang

Dr Chew Sze Mun

Dr Chia Tee Hien

Dr Chiong Peck Koon Gabriel
Dr Chong Chun Hon

Dr Colin Ngeow

Dr Goh Khean Teik

Dr Goh Lay Hoon

Dr Huan Meng Wah

Dr Kalaimamani Kanagasabai
Dr Khemani Neeta Parshotam
Dr Koh Choon Huat Gerald
Dr Koh Wee Boon Kelvin
Dr Kwan Yew Seng

Dr Kwong Kum Hoong

Dr Lee Mun Tuck

Dr Lee SuehYing Patricia

22,
23.
24,
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30.
3l
32.
33.
34.
35.
36.
37.
38.
39.
40.
41.

The Approved Training Centres (ATC) for Family Medicine are:

College of Family Physicians Singapore
Singhealth Polyclinics

2
3. National Health Group Polyclinics
4. Department of Family Medicine Continuing Care, Singapore General Hospita!

Dr Leong Choon Kit

Dr Lim Hui Ling

Dr Lim Kah Choo Carol
Dr Lim Lee Min Dale

Dr Ling Yee Kiang

Dr Loh Wee Tiong Alfred
Dr Ng Chee Lian Lawrence
Dr Poon Beng Hoong

Dr Rukshini Puvanendran
Dr Siaw Tung Yeng

Dr Tan Boon Yeow

Dr Tan Kok Heng Adrian
Dr Tham Tat Yean

Dr Thng Lip Mong Barry
Dr Wong Fook Meng Wilson
Dr Wong See Hong
DrWong Tien Hua

DrYap Soo Kor Jason
DrYii Hee Seng

DrYong Molly
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COLLEGE MIRROR

2009 saw a change in the editorial team for College Mirror. Dr Wilson Eu Tieng Juoh was appointed Editor for Team A and
Dr Kiran Kashyap joined Team B Editorial Board.The College wishes to thank past editor Dr Shiau Ee Leng.

SIGNIFICANT COLLEGE EVENTS

Commencement of Academic Year 2008

As usual the academic year was inaugurated with a Commencement Ceremony which was held on 28 June 2008 at Health
Promotion Board.The Guest of Honour was Prof Fock Kwong Ming, Master of Academy of Medicine Singapore.

There were 100 trainees in the GDFM course, 33 trainees in the MMed (FM) Prog A, 13 trainees in the MMed (FM) Prog B
and 14 trainees in the Family Medicine Fellowship Programme registered.

Convocation 2008

The Family Medicine Convocation Ceremony was held on 23rd November 2008 and the Guest of Honour was Mr Khaw Boon
Wan, Minister for Health.

I'l doctors were conferred the MCFP(S).

80 GDFM graduates and 23 MMed (FM) graduates were recognized.

Annual General Meeting 2008

The College AGM held on 28th June 2008 was notable because we finally got a quorum after failed attempts in the past few
years.To cap it all the quorum of two hundred voting members was a record in the history of the College.

The resolution to amend the quorum to fifty voting members or 1/8 of the total voting members, whichever is less and the
resolution to introduce a new category of life membership were unanimously approved.

College Building Commiittee

This was formed in July 2008 to advise the Council on acquiring a property or properties for investment or for use by
the College.

Dr Tan See Leng is the chairman of the committee. The members are Dr Arthur Tan and Dr Lee Kheng Hock.The advisors are
Dr Lee Suan Yew and A/Prof Goh Lee Gan.

Extraordinary General Meeting

This was held on 25th October 2008 to seek members’ endorsement/mandate for the purchase of a property or properties,
incorporation of a private limited company to purchase, hold and manage the property/properties and the terms of
reference of the board of trustees consisting of Dr Tan See Leng, A/Prof Lim Lean Huat, and Dr Arthur Tan.
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CFPS Holdings Pte Ltd

CFPS Holdings Pte Ltd is the company to purchase, hold, and manage the property or properties, and was incorporated on
23rd March 2009.

The board of directors are:

Executive Chairman : DrTan See Leng

Executive Directors : A/Prof Lim Lean Huat
Dr Arthur Tan

Non Executive Directors  : A/Prof Goh Lee Gan

Dr Cheng Heng Lee
Dr Lim Fong Seng

The Council met MOH and the CPF Workgroup on prescribing benzodiazepine to give feedback from the perspectives
of GPs.

The Council arranged a meeting with MOH Holdings and College Members to discuss IT support for primary care doctors in
the private and public sectors. The vision of an electronic health record of patients, where there could be clinical information
flow between hospital and clinics, was discussed.

The Council submitted feedback to MOH on “MOH Conversations: integrated Healthcare Services”.

COMMUNITY SERVICE ACTIVITIES

The Council reviewed and endorsed the following Clinical Practice Guidelines:
- Stroke and Transient Ischaemic Attacks
- Management of Genital Ulcers and Discharge
- Cancer Screening

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The 21st Council deeply appreciates and is grateful for the collaboration, support and sponsorship extended towards the
College by:

«  The Ministry of Health

e The Ministry of Community Development,Youth and Sports

»  Office of Public Guardian

*  Health Promotion Board

¢ Glaxo Smith Kline Pte Ltd

¢ AstraZeneca Singapore Pte Ltd

«  Novo Nordisk Pharma (Singapore) Pte Ltd

»  Alzheimer’s Disease Association (Singapore)

The Council also acknowledge with deepest appreciation the invaluable advice and assistance rendered by :
«  Our panel of Honorary Legal Advisors: Mr Edwin Tong and Mr Lek Siang Pheng
*  Our Honorary Auditor:V. . Kumaran

All that the College had achieved the past year could not have happened without the many willing hands and selfless hearts of
our tutors, examiners, editorial board members of our various publications, committee members and specialist colleagues.

The 21Ist Council extends its best wishes to the incoming 22nd Council (2009-2011).

Dr Cheng Heng Lee
Honorary Secretary

21st Council (2007-2009)

College of Family Physicians Singapore
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF CENSORS
1 APRIL 2008 - 31 MARCH 2009

Censor-in-Chief : Dr Lee Kheng Hock
Censors : DrTan Chee Beng

: DrTan Boon Yeow
Advisors ¢ A/Prof Cheong Pak Yean

1 A/Prof Goh Lee Gan

INTRODUCTION

The Family Physician Register that was announced recently is a positive development that vindicated many of our members
who persevered and pursued postgraduate training even when official recognition and support was lacking.

Recognition brings with it greater responsibilities and expectations. The College should prepare itself to meet the challenges
of sustaining and improving our training programmes and making the best use of our limited resources.

MEMBERSHIP
Membership of our College now stands at 1,368 members as of June 2009 compared to 1,348 members in the previous year.
The distribution by grade of membership for the last four years are also shown below:

Membership Category 2006 2007 2008 2009
Honorary Fellows 12 12 12 10
Fellows 70 67 73 76
Collegiate Members 89 108 120 132
Ordinary Members 871 922 930 1020
Associate Members 120 121 152 130
Overseas Members 2 4 - -
Retired Members 79 84 6l -
Total 1243 318 1348 1368

COMMENCEMENT OF THE ACADEMIC YEAR
The Commencement of the academic year for 2009 will take place at the Health Promotion Board on 27th June 2009.

THE GRADUATE DIPLOMA OF FAMILY MEDICINE (GDFM) EXAMINATION 2008

The seventh GDFM Examination was held on 27 June 2008 and 5-6 July 2008. 80 of the 89 candidates passed, giving a passing
rate of 90% for the GDFM Examination 2008.The Censors Board, which was the Examination Board, vetted and finalised all
the questions. The standard set is a pass in all three segments.

The format of the three segments of the GDFM Examination is as followed:

= 100 MCQ questions (2 hours)

= 10 Key Features Problems (KFP) questions (I hour)

s 10 OSCE stations (I | minutes per station comprising 8 minutes for testing and 3 minutes for marking)
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The following candidates passed the GDFM Examination 2008:

1. Dr Chen Jer Shih

2. Dr Chew Ee Hern Kevin

3 Dr Chia Wei Meng Vincent
4, Dr Chin Siew Pang

5e Dr Chong Chun Choy Vincent
6. Dr ChongYu Eric

7. Dr Chua Shu May Celeste Ann
8. Dr Chua Swee Huat George
9. Dr Chua Yong Kwang Kevin
10.  Dr Dana Elliott Srither

I1.  Dr Espeno Richard

12. Dr Florencio lll Santos Pineda
13. Dr Gan OwTin

14.  Dr GohWee Teck Jerry

I15.  Dr Han SuYin Jane

16.  Dr Han Wui Syen

17. Dr Henry Ramaya

18.  Dr Ho Jee Meng

19.  Dr Hoo Hui Kim

20. Dr Koh Jean Shen

21.  Dr Koh Kian Hiong Derek
22.  Dr Koo Wee Khiat Alvin

23.  Dr Kwan Pek Yee

24.  Dr Kwee Wee Hock David
25.  Dr Lau Eng Kien

26.  Dr LauYen Ning

27.  Dr Lee Chu Ching

28.  Dr Lee Eng Seng

29. DrLee HonYee

30.  Dr Lee Kai Xin,

3. Dr Lee Mei Kam Irene

32.  DrLeeVan Hien

33. Dr Lee Wan Sian

34.  Dr Leong Huey Yee Christine
35. Dr Leow Boon Teck

36.  Dr Leow Cheng Gek

37.  Dr Liang Clarence

38.  Dr Liew Nan Piew Herman
39.  Dr Lim ChuiYin

40.  Dr Lim Liang
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80.

Dr Lim Mei Yuan Loretta
Dr Lim Shee Lai

Dr Lim Wee Peng

Dr Lin Kai Wei

Dr Ling Ning Margaret

Dr Lye Tin Fong

Dr Ma Sabai @ Lee Cheong Mei
Dr Ma Rachelle De Gracia
Dr Manimaran Sivasamy
Dr Manojkumar Amarlal Kharbanda
Dr Mary John

Dr Mohd Saifuz Sulaimi

Dr Ng Cheow Hua David
Dr Pang Wui Chi Jason

Dr Phua Sin Ru

Dr Pwee May Li Emily

Dr Quah Hock Aik Derek
Dr Quek Peng Lim Timothy
Dr Rebecca Martha Jacob
Dr Santiago Baby Liza

Dr Seniati Rizalina Bahari
Dr Seo Peng Sin

Dr Sng Kong Chee

Dr Sonia Haridas

DrTan Gek Ngor

Dr Tan Han Young Felix

Dr Tan Hsin-Hui Louisa

Dr Tan Sein Yong Esther

Dr Tan Swee Meng Robin
Dr Tang Ching Ching

Dr Tay Siew Hua

Dr Tay Wen Sien

Dr Teo Eng Swee Cuthbert
Dr Victor Risma Il

Dr Wee Wei Keong

Dr Wong Pei Lin Suzanne
DrWong Pey Gein Franco
DrWoo Lan Choei

Dr Woon Sin Yong

Dr Yap Tiong Toh

THE 18TH MASTER OF MEDICINE (FAMILY MEDICINE) EXAMINATION

The 18th Master of Medicine (Family Medicine) Examination was held on 10-12 November 2008 and 15-16 November 2008.
Of the 28 candidates who sat for the examination, 23 were successful. They were:

Dr Ang Seng Bin

Dr Cheng Kah Ling Grace
Dr Chng Shih Kiat

Dr Goh Teck Kheng

Dr How Chon How

Dr Koh Mei Lin Jocelyn
Dr Kwek Hwei Min

Dr Low Wai Leong Jeffrey
Dr Lee Bing Ming Simon
Dr Lee Eng Sing

Dr Lee Meng Kam Richard
Dr Moey Kirm Seng Peter

© N AW —

— — — 0
N -o

13.
14,
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22
23.

Dr Ng Lee Beng

Dr Ng Yok Leng Michelle

Dr Phua Cheng Pau Kelvin
Dr Ratnaporn Siriamornsarp
Dr Seah Ee-Jin Darren

Dr Somasundram Pushparanee
Dr Tan Hsien Yung David

Dr Tan Shu Yun

Dr Tan Teck Shi

Dr Ting Sing Shing Jonathan
Dr Tiong Sylvia

As of 3Ist March 2009, there were a total of 283 doctors with MMed FM qualification.
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THE AWARD OF MCFP(S) TO MMED(FM) HOLDERS WHO FULFIL CRITERIA
In 2008, | | applicants were awarded the MCFP(S).The criteria for the award were as followed:

= Membership of the College for at least two years
= Active in CME and have achieved the 25 points in the SMC CME or equivalent
= Actively involved in undergraduate or postgraduate teaching

The MCFP(S) were awarded to the following members:

I. Dr Cheah Soon Min Benjamin 7.  Dr Koh Tse-Chung Kevin
2. Dr Chew Eng Lee 8.  Dr Lau Chin Hoh

3.  Dr ChiamYih Hsing John 9. Dr Lim Chien Wei

4. Dr Chong Tsung Wei 10.  Dr SooWern Fern

5. Dr Farhad Fakhrudin Vasanwala 1. DrTanWoei Jen Michelle
6.  DrKiran Kashyap

THE CONFERMENT OF THE MCFP(S)

The conferment ceremony was conducted at the College Convocation which was held on 23rd November 2008. The
Guest of Honour at the conferment was Mr Khaw Boon Wan, Minister for Health.

ALBERT AND MARY LIM AWARD

This year the recipients of this prestigious award was Dr Lee Suan Yew.

CONCLUSION

We would like the thank the Censors Board, the Institute of Family Medicine and the College Secretariat for another year of
dedicated service to our College.

Dr Lee Kheng Hock

Censor-in-Chief
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REPORT OF THE INSTITUTE OF FAMILY MEDICINE (IFM)
1 APRIL 2008 - 31 MARCH 2009

Chairman : A/Prof Goh Lee Gan
Members : Dr Cheng Heng Lee
: DrWongTien Hua

The Institute of Family Medicine, set up within the College to provide the training and education support for the College,
plays a role in developing the contents and syllabi of the Family Medicine Modular Courses and the quarterly Family Practice
Skills Courses. '

During the year, the IFM reviewed, updated and edited the notes as well as the e-learning components for Module 8, |, 2, and
3 of the Family Medicine Modular Course.They have since been launched in the GDFM/MMedFM modular courses.

The Family Medicine Modular Course
The Family Medicine Modular Course consists of 8 modules of study over two years. Each year four modules are covered.

Table | shows the modular courses taught between April 2008 and March 2009.Thanks are due to the Chairmen and Resource
Persons for their contributions in the teaching programme.

Table 1. Family Medicine Modular Courses Conducted from Apr 2008 to Mar 2009

Module Training Period Year | Trainees Year 2 Trainees Total
8 05 Apr 08 - 26 Apr 08 108 123 231
I 02 Aug 08 - 30 Aug 08 12 109 Y
2 01 Nov 08 - 22 Nov 08 125 109 234
- 3 07 Feb 09 - 28 Feb 09 125 107 232
Module 8:

05 Apr 08 (Sat) M8I.I:Antenatal care — Dr Yap Lip Kee
M81.2: Medical Disorders In pregnancy — Dr Yong Tze Tein
Chairperson: Dr Kwan Yew Seng

12 Apr 08 (Sat) M81.3: Complications in pregnancy — Dr Douglas Ong
M81.4: Postnatal Care — Dr Julianah Abu
Chairperson: Dr Julian Lim

19 Apr 08 (Sat) M82.1:Acute musculoskeletal problems — DrYue Wai Mun
M82.2: Chronic musculoskeletal problems — Dr Law Weng Giap
Chairperson: Dr Siew Chee Weng

26 Apr 08 (Sat) M82.3:Acute neurological problems — Dr Chong Piang Ngok

M82.4: Chronic neurological problems — Dr Ho King Hee
Chairperson:A/Prof Goh Lee Gan
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Module I:
02 Aug 08 (Sat)

16 Aug 08 (Sat)

23 Aug 08 (Sat)

30 Aug 08 (Sat)

Moduile 2;
01 Nov 08 (Sat)

08 Nov 08 (Sat)

I5 Nov 08 (Sat)

22 Nov 08 (Sat)

Module 3:
07 Feb 09 (Sat)

14 Feb 09 (Sat)

2| Feb 09 (Sat)

28 Feb 09 (Sat)

18

College of Family Physicians Singapore ANNUAL REPORT 2008-2009

MII.1:Acute upper respiratory infections — Dr Julian Lim

M11.2:Acute lower respiratory infections ~ Dr Ong Kian Chung

Chairpersons: Dr Wong Ted Min, Dr Matthew Ng

Asst Chairpersons: Dr Chew Sze Mun, Dr Chin Kong Ling, Dr Jason Yap, Dr Charity Low

M1 1.3: Chronic cough, tuberculosis, & lung cancer — Dr Tan Tiong Har

M1 1.4: Bronchial asthma & COPD - Prof Lim Tow Keang

Chairpersons: Dr Chow Mun Hong, Dr Michael Wong

Asst Chairpersons: Dr Meena Sundram, Dr Hwang Siew Wai, Dr Chong Tsung Wei, Dr Joanne Quah

MI2.1: Ear problems — Dr Luke Tan Kim Siang

M12.2: Nose and throat problems — Dr Chew Chuan Tieh

Chairpersons: A/Prof Goh Lee Gan, Dr Kwong Kum Hoong

Asst Chairpersons: Dr Lee Mun Tuck, Dr Goh Lay Hoon, Dr Raymond Ng

M12.3: Eye symptoms and acute conditions — Dr Lim Tock Han

MI2.4: Eyelid problems and chronic eye conditions — Dr Llewellyn Lee
Chairpersons: A/Prof Goh Lee Gan, Dr Julian Lim

Asst Chairpersons: Dr Lee Mun Tuck, Dr Jason Yap, Dr Farhad Vasanwala

M21.1:Acute paediatric problems — Prof Quah Tuan Chong
M21.3:Adolescent health — Dr Mary Yang Hon Mee
Chairpersons: Dr Loke Kam Weng, Dr Julian Lim

M21.2: Developmental Paediatrics — Dr Janice Wong

M21.4: Behavioural Paediatrics — Dr Yeo Kah Loke Brian
Chairpersons: Dr Michael Wong Tuck Keong, Dr Matthew Ng Joo Ming
Asst Chairpersons: Dr Meena Sundram, Dr Teoh Mei Lin

M22.1: Upper gastro-intestinal problems — Dr Steven Mesanas
M22.2: Lower gastro-intestinal problems — Dr Ang Tiing Leong
Chairpersons: Dr Colin Ngeow, A/Prof Cheong Pak Yean

Asst Chairpersons: Dr Goh Lay Hoon, Dr Michelle Tan Woei Jen

M22.3: Hepatic problems — A/Prof Chow Wan Cheng

M22.4: Gallbladder and pancreatic problems — Dr Chow Kah Hoe Pierce
Chairpersons: Dr Matthew Ng, Dr Wong Ted Min

Asst Chairpersons: Dr Farhad Vasanwala, Dr Adrian Tan

M3 1.1: Chronic disease management — Dr Ho Han Kwee
M31.2: Hypertension — Dr Baldev Singh

Chairpersons: Dr Jonathan Pang, Dr Loke Kam Weng
Asst Chairpersons: Dr Michelle Tan Woei Jen

SM31.3: Diabetes mellitus — Dr Tan Khai Tong

M31.4: Obesity and metabolic disorders — A/Prof Sum Chee Fang
Chairpersons: Dr Matthew Ng, Dr Kwan Yew Seng

Asst Chairpersons: Teoh Mei Lin

M32.1: Hematological problems — Dr Tan Hwee Huang

M32.2: Prevention & early detection of cancer — Dr Tan Yew Qo
Chairpersons: A/Prof Goh Lee Gan, Dr Julian Lim

Asst Chairpersons: Dr Adrian Tan

M32.3: Cancer management — Dr Donald Poon Yew Hee
M32.4: Palliative care — Dr Kok Jaan Yang

Chairpersons: Dr Michael Yee Jen Jet, A/Prof Goh Lee Gan
Asst Chairpersons: Dr Chong Tsung Wei




Family Practice Skills Course (FPSC)

The Family Practice Skills Courses serve the continuing professional development needs of the General Practitioner / Family
Physician.We are able to run at least one course a quarter. See Table 2.

The components of a skill course may include one or more of the following:

Distance Learning with verification (6 CME points)

Lectures (max of 2 CME points — | point for each seminar of 3 lectures)

Workshop (2 CME points)

Small group activities including clinical attachments, tutorials, ward-rounds

Assessments which can be written, oral, demonstration and/or clinical (for some courses)

“hwh —

A typical FPSC template is a course with six units of distance learning with verification of 30 MCQs, two seminars, and one
workshop conducted over two afternoon sessions e.g., one Saturday afternoon and Sunday afternoon.

During the year the College conducted 6 Family Practice Skills Courses.

Table 2. Participation in the Family Practice Skills Courses Apr 2008 to Mar 2009

No. of Doctors Passed / Attended

Event Title Distance Learning Seminars/Workshop 1 Seminars/Workshop 2
FPSC 26 Passed: 388 Seminar |:74 Seminar 2: 84
Diabetes Mellitus: Revisited Failed: | Workshop 1:57 Workshop 2: 17
FPSC 27

Communicable Diseases of Community Passed: 308 Seminar |:49 Seminar 2: 53
Importance Failed: | Workshop 1:35

FPSC 28 Passed: 284 Seminar [:47 Seminar 2: 44
Asthma Update 2008 Failed: | Workshop 1:33

FPSC 29 Passed: 131 Seminar 1:98 Seminar 2: 83
Nutrition Updates:What You Need to Know Failed: - Workshop 1: 68

FPSC 30 R Passed: 610 Seminar 1: 138 Seminar 2: 1 16
Gastrointestinal Diseases Failed: | Workshop |: 107

FPSC 17 (Repeat) Passed: 463 Seminar 1:72 - Seminar 2: 68
Dementia: 2009 Updates Failed: 6 Workshop 1:72

E-Learning

The E-Learning programme is a growing medium of CME activity delivery. Launched in 2003, it has been incorporated into the
GDFM training programme.An E-Learning component for each module was introduced, consisting of therapeutic notes, case
scenarios, assessment by MCQs and a case review to be put up by a tutorial group.

A/Prof Goh Lee Gan

Course Director
Family Medicine Teaching Programme
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REPORT OF THE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE
1 APRIL 2008 - 31 MARCH 2009

Chairman : A/Prof Cheong Pak Yean
Members : Dr Lee Kheng Hock

: Dr Lim Fong Seng

: Dr Cheng Heng Lee

The Secretariat headcount was stable. There was no resignation and a new staff member was recruited as the Administrative
and Accounts Assistant. All the staff worked cohesively as a team.

The formal arrangement for the College to provide secretariat support to the Joint Committee for Family Medicine Training
(JCFMT) with Ministry of Health (MOH) funding, started since September 2005, would end in May 2009. It was indeed an
honour and privilege for the College to have had the opportunity to collaborate and work with the JCFMT and MOH on
training for post graduate family medicine.

MOH had also kindly renewed the tenancy of the College in spite of them facing a space crunch, albeit for a smaller area.
WONCA had also graciously decided to move out from our premises thus compensating to some degree for the space we
had to return to MOH.

These developments necessitated renovations to be carried out to optimise the use of the remaining space for a lecture room
to seat about forty people and a new work area for the staff.

The College is also grateful for the contributions of all the other staff who left and wish them all the best in their
endeavours.

A/Prof Cheong Pak Yean

Chairman
Administration Committee
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REPORT OF THE MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE
1 APRIL 2008 - 31 MARCH 2009

Chairman : Dr Jonathan Pang Sze Kang
Members : Dr Cheng Heng Lee

The College Membership rose from 1,348 members in May 2008 to 1,368 members (as of June 2009).

Another eventful year just flew by. We have tried to increase our membership base through our many academic activities. Many
have come to realize that ‘membership has its privileges’.

We have also instituted the ‘life’ membership to reward our many loyal members who have stayed with us all this years.WVe
have |13 members who qualified for life membership. They have been offered this special category of membership to thank
them for their many years of support. They continue to enjoy all the benefits of being a member without having to pay any
more membership fees.

The College has also tried to help all our doctors in terms of encouraging and expanding our training programmes to allow
more who wish to further their training in Family Medicine. In view of the impending ‘Family Physician Register’ which will be
gazetted when Parliament passes the amendments to the Medical Registration Act, it is timely that many more have chosen to
join the College and enjoy substantial discounts in the programmes.

The College has also tried to link and provide support to all our doctors in times of need and stress in the ongoing Influenza
A (HINI-2009) outbreak occurring throughout the world.We have done a great deal and through our collaboration with the
Ministry and the SMA rolled out several initiatives to assist our front line doctors.

With the vision of encouraging more doctors to be better trained and providing for ‘one family doctor for all Singaporeans’ it
is envisaged that more will join us as members and take advantage of the benefits of our membership.

Dr Jonathan Pang Sze Kang
Chairman
Membership Committee
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REPORT OF THE PUBLICATIONS COMMITTEE
1 APRIL 2008 - 31 MARCH 2009

Singapore Family Physician Journal

Honorary Editor :  Dr Lawrence Ng Chee Lian
Section Editor : A/Prof Goh Lee Gan
Administrative Editor :  Ms Linda Marelie

College Mirror
Editors ¢ Dr EuTieng Juoh Wilson (from January 2009)

Dr Shiau Ee Leng (up to December 2008)
DrWong Tien Hua

Editorial Board Members : Dr Kiran Kashyap (from October 2008)
¢ Dr Loke Wai Chiong
Dr See Toh Kwok Yee
:  Dr Seow Hoong Wei Gabriel
i Dr Shiau Ee Leng
: DrYee Jenn Jet Michael

Advisors ¢ A/Prof Cheong Pak Yean
A/Prof Goh Lee Gan
Dr Lee Kheng Hock
Dr Cheng Heng Lee

Editorial Executive :  Ms Linda Marelie

The Singapore Family Physician Journal

The following Singapore Family Physician Journals were published in the past one year:

Diabetes Mellitus - Revisited:Vol 34 No 2, April — June 2008

Communicable Diseases of Community Importance:Vol 34 No 2 (Supplement), April — June 2008
Asthma Update 2008:Vol 34 No 3, July — September 2008

Nutrition Updates - What You Need to Know:Vol 34 No 4, October — December 2008
Gastrointestinal Diseases:Vol 35 No [, January — March 2009

ViAW —

The last year has seen this journal producing articles of higher quality. We are grateful to the many contributors for
submitting their articles promptly.

Producing a journal for practicing family physicians and for those in academia in family medicine is a challenge.

Many of us in practice have little time to keep ourselves updated professionally and would like a journal that addresses our
immediate practical professional needs.We want quickie take-home message which we can apply straight-away in our offices
and enhances patient care in tangible ways.We want to score our CME points so that we can renew our practicing license
at the end of the two year cycle. Preferably, we would like to be entertained as well whilst we read the journal. Academics
would like the journal to be more precise and technical in its presentation. Statistics abound and rigours of scientific analysis
applied to each paper published.
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Over the past year, we hope we have managed to meet the needs of both camps.We believe the editorial board has achieved
some measure of success in this regard.

We continue to appeal to practicing family physicians to write and submit papers and reap the satisfaction of seeing their
papers published in this journal.We do need more contributors from our own family physician community out there, whether
in private practice or in the clusters.

Finally, | would like to thank A/Prof Goh Lee Gan, Dr Cheng Heng Lee, Dr Wong Tien Hua, Dr Shiau Ee Leng, Dr Wilson Eu,
Ms Linda Marelie & members of the Editorial Board for their untiring efforts in producing each issue on time. | would like
to thank all contributors who so painstaking write succinct articles relevant to the family physician, at the cost of their time
and trouble. Without all of you, this journal would not have been possible.

Dr Lawrence Ng Chee Lian

Chairman & Honorary Editor
Publications Committee
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REPORT OF THE INTERNATIONAL COMMITTEE
1 APRIL 2008 - 31 MARCH 2009

Chairman ¢ A/Prof Goh Lee Gan
Members ¢ A/Prof Cheong Pak Yean
: Dr Lee Kheng Hock

TERMS OF REFERENCE

This Committee was set up in July 2001 with the following terms of reference:

I. To advise the College Council on developments in Family Medicine in the international scene;
2. Toimplement activities decided by Wonca World & Wonca Asia Pacific Region;

3. To implement bilateral activities in Family Medicine teaching, research and practice.

FAMILY MEDICINE DEVELOPMENTS IN THE INTERNATIONAL SCENE

The 19th Wonca World Conference will be held in 2010 in Cancun, Mexico. The theme of the Conference is “Millennium
Development Goals: the contribution of Family Medicine”. The Scientific Committee invites would be participants to submit
abstracts and to be part of the Scientific Programme of this international event.

ACTIVITIES IN ASIA PACIFIC REGION

In the year under review from | April 2008 and 31 March 2009, the the combined conference of the Asia Pacific Region of
the World Organization of Family Doctors (Wonca) and the Annual Conference of The Royal Australian College of General
Practitioners was held in Melbourne on October 2-5,2008 . Nearly 1500 delegates from 46 nations participated in the conference.
Several delegates from Singapore participated.

The 2009 Wonca Asia Pacific Regional Conference will be held in Hong Kong on June 5-8, 2009. A/Prof Goh Lee Gan has
been invited to give the Wes Fabb Oration 2009.The title of his Oration is “Connecting Care as the Next Conceptual Leap
in Family Medicine.

BILATERAL ACTIVITIES

The Asia Pacific Primary Care Research Conference 2009 will be held from 5-6th December in Malaka. Registration is now
open.

A/Prof Goh Lee Gan

Chairman
International Committee
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REPORT OF THE UNDERGRADUATE TEACHING COMMITTEE
1 APRIL 2008 - 31 MARCH 2009

Chairman : A/Prof Lim Lean Huat
Members : A/Prof Goh Lee Gan
Dr Ajith Damodaran

The undergraduate family medicine posting continues to be a four-week posting with two weeks spent in the GP clinic and
two weeks in the Polyclinic. Within these 4 weeks there were one-day attachment to the community hospital and two-day
palliative care programme.

The success of the postings depended on the many family medicine tutors, polyclinic tutors, and tutors in the community
hospitals and in the palliative care units.We would like to place our thanks for the contributions by the tutors listed below.

LIST OF FM TUTORS - 2008/2009

Private Practitioners

I Dr Ang Boon Kiang, Steven Gregory 38.  Dr Loke Foo Shi, Kelly

2. Dr Ang Choon Kiat,Alvin 39. Dr Low Chee Wah, Mark

3. Dr Boey Kok Hoe 40.  Dr Low Cheng Hong, Charity
4. Dr Chang Tou Liang 41.  Dr Low Choon Kiat, Paul

5. Dr Chia Swee Heong, Daniel 42.  Dr Low How Cheong

6. Dr Chiam Yih Hsing, John 43.  Dr Low Mun Heng, Gerard
7. Dr Chng Shih Kiat 44.  Dr Nor Azhar Bin Mohd Zam
8. Dr Chin En Loy, Conrad 45.  Dr NgJuak Cher

9. Dr Chow Yew Choong,Vincent 46.  Dr Sarani Bte Omar

10.  Dr ChuaThiam Eng 47.  Dr Ong Eu Jin,Roy

1. Dr Chui Peng Leong 48.  Dr Pang Sze Kang, Jonathan
2. Dr Ajith Damodaran 49.  DrWong Ming

13.  Dr Eng Soo Kiang 50.  DrAdam Patrick

14, Dr GanTek Kah 5. Dr Seow Hoong Wei, Gabriel
I15.  Dr Goh Chee Hwei 52.  Dr Soh Eng Liong, Lawrence
16.  Dr GohTiong Jin 53.  Dr Soh Soon Beng

17.  Dr Janet Gouw 54.  Dr SohWah Ngee

18.  Dr Hor OiLin 55.  DrTan Chi Beng, Melvyn

19.  Dr Hong Eu Gee, Gideon 56.  DrTan Lip Hong

20.  Dr Hui Keem Peng, John 57.  DrTay GuanVYu, Jeff

21, Dr Hui SengYin, Toby 58.  DrTan Kok Eng

22, Dr Koh Tse-Chung, Kevin 59. Dr Teo Yee Sheng,Victor

23.  Dr Koh Yang Hwee, Norman 60. DrTeo Boon See

24.  Dr Bina Kurup 61.  DrThio Yauw Leng, Bernard
25.  Dr Kwong Kum Hoong 62.  DrTeow Kay Leong, Roy

26.  Dr Lee Meng Kam, Richard 63.  DrTong Jia Jong, Stephen

27. Dr Lee Khai Weng, Michael 64. DrWee Chee Chau

28. DrlauTehYee 65.  DrWong Mei Mon

29.  Dr Lee Hew Mun, John 66.  DrWong Mun Chong

30. DrLee-Oh Chong Leng 67.  DrWong Liang Fu

3.  DrLeeTzu Hooi 68. DrWongTed Min

32.  Dr Leong Choon Kit 69.  DrYap Eng Chew

33.  Dr Leong Peng Fai, Samuel 70.  DrYap Soo Kor, Jason

34.  Dr Lim Chien Wei 71.  DrYap Soon Boon, Raymond
35.  Dr Lim Lee Kiang, Julian 72.  DrYap Siong Yew, Mark

36.  Dr LeeWee How 73.  DrYeo Peng Hock, Henry
37.  DrLimWee Ni 74, Dr Ng Chiew Fang
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Tutors from Singhealth Polyclinic
Dr Alice Lee

I

2. Dr Chow Mun Hong

3. Dr Chua Chi Song

4. Dr David Ng Chee Chin
5. Dr Ee Guan Liang Adrian
6. Dr Goh Lay Hoon

7. Dr Goh Soo Chye Paul

8. Dr Ho Chih Wei Sally

9. Dr Hwang Siew Wai

10.  Dr lan Phoon Kwong Yun
Il.  Dr Juliana Bahadin

12, Dr Lau Chin Hoh

13. Dr Lim Hwee Boon

14.  Dr Ng Chung Wai

I5.  Dr Ng Lai Peng

16.  Dr Oh Guat Leng

17. Dr Ong Cheng Eng

18. Dr Quah Hui Min Joanne
19.  Dr Shah Mitesh

20.  Dr SngWei Kwan

2|.  Dr SooWern Fern

22.  Dr SwahTeck Sin

23.  DrTan Chee Beng

24.  DrTan Choon Seng Gilbert
25.  DrTan Kok Leong

26.  DrTan MingYing Michelle
27.  DrTan Ngiap Chuan

28.  DrTay Ee Guan

29.  DrTseWan Lung Derek
30.  DrWee Kien Han Andrew
31.  DrWong Song Ung

32.  DrWongTack Keong Michael

Tutors from NHG Polyclinic
Dr Lim Fong Seng

I

2. Dr Chong Phui Nah
3. Dr Lew Yii Jen

4. Dr Elaine Tan SL

5. Dr Karen Ng

6. Dr Winnie Soon

7. Dr Colin Tan

8. Dr Rachel Gwee

9. Dr Phua Mei Fang
10.  Dr Ong Jin Ai

I1. Dr Keith Tsou

12.  DrTangWern Ee
13. Dr Sabrina Wong
14.  DrYehudiYeo

15.  DrTan Kim Kiat

16.  Dr Lee Mun Tuck
17.  Dr Marvin Chan

18.  Dr Meena Sundram
19.  Dr Benjamin Cheah
20.  Dr Irwin Chung
2t.  DrTungYew Cheong

LIST OF PALLIATIVE CARE TUTORS

A/Prof Cynthia Ruth Goh

l.

2. Dr Lalit Krishna

3L Dr Grace Pang SuYin

4. Dr Lynette Ngo

St Dr Angel Lee Onn Kei

6. Dr Wu Huei Yaw

7. Dr Koh Nien Yue

8. Dr lan LeongYi Onn

9. A/Prof Pang Weng Sun

10.  Dr OngWahYing

I, DrAllyn HumYin Mei

12.  Dr Mervyn Koh

13.  Dr Chong Poh Heng

4. Dr OngYew Jin

I15.  Dr James Alvin Low Yiew Hock
16.  Dr Angeline Seah Soek Tian
7. Dr Noreen Chan

18.  Dr Kok Jaan Yang

19.  Dr R Akhileswaran

20. DrTanYew Seng

21.  Dr Khin Khin Win

22.  Dr Lee Chung Seng

23.  Dr Patricia Neo Soek Hui

LIST OF COMMUNITY HOSPITAL TUTORS

Dr Ee Chye Hua

Dr Lee Chung Seng

Dr Patricia Lee

Dr Lee Bee Sian

Dr Edward Balan Menon
Dr Adrian Tan

Dr Tan Boon Yeow

Dr Colin Ngeow

O N AW~

LIST OF FULL AND PART-TIME
DEPARTMENTAL STAFF FOR 2008/2009

AJProf Goh Lee Gan

Adj A/Prof Lim Lean Huat
Adj A/Prof Cheong Pak Yean
Dr Gerald Koh Choon Huat
Dr Cheong Seng Kwing

Dr Wong Teck Yee

Dr Helen Leong Soh Sum
Dr Ruth Lim

PN AW —

Thanks are also due to the coordinators and secretariat staff in the various organisations.

A/Prof Lim Lean Huat

Chairman
Undergraduate Teaching Committee
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REPORT OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE
1 APRIL 2008 - 31 MARCH 2009

Chairman : Dr Lim Fong Seng
Members : A/Prof Cheong Pak Yean
: Dr Cheng Heng Lee

The College is on a sound financial footing during the period | April 2008 to 31 March 2009.

Revenue from our courses and seminars contributed to 48.6% of our total revenue while sponsorships contributed 19.9% to our
total revenue. Subscriptions contributed 18.4%.These 3 items together account for close to 87% of our revenue. College recorded
an accumulated surplus of $ 621,622 brought about by a gross revenue of $1,146,224 and an expenditure of $524,602.

As the college is a not-for-profit organisation, its financial investment policy is conservative and risk-adverse. In this respect
the College relies mainly on interests generated by fixed term deposits.

Dr Lim Fong Seng

Honorary Treasurer
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
(REGISTERED IN SINGAPORE)
REG NO. 138/711AP

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MarcH 2009




V.P.KUMARAN & CO ¥16-04 PENINSULA PLAZA
SINGAPORE 179098
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS TEL : 63376485 (3 LINES)

FAX : 63396517
EMAIL : vpkco@singnet.com.sg

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the College of Family
Physicians Singapore, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2009, the
income and expenditure statement, statement of changes in accumulated fund,
miscellaneous funds and revaluation reserve and cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Managements’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with the provisions of the Societies Act and Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes:

a) devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to
provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorised use or disposition; and transaction are properly authorised and
that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair
income statement, balance sheets and to maintain accountability of assets;

b) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
c) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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V.P.KUMARAN & CO

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Opinion

In our opinion,

111 NORTH BRIDGE ROAD
#16-04 PENINSULA PLAZA
SINGAPORE 179098

TEL : 63376485 (3 LINES)
FAX : 63396517

EMAIL : vpkco@singnet.com.sg

the financial statements are properly drawm up in accordance with the
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Society as at 31 March 2009 and the results, changes in
members’ fund and cash flows of the Society for the year ended on that date.

LR A g wﬁe\
V.P. KUMARAN & CO.
Public Accountants and
Certified Public Accountants

Singapore,

29 MAY 2009
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
Reg No.138/71TAP

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

REVENUE

Subscriptions

Entrance fees

Continuing medical education fees
Courses and seminars fees
Sponsorships

Advertisements

Miscellaneous income

Traineeship fees - JCFMT

Net surplus from Wonca

FMTS Honorarium

LESS: EXPENDITURE

Staff costs

Depreciation

Exchange (gain)/loss
Administrative expenses

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR TRANSFERRED
TO ACCUMULATED FUND

Note

(oo ]e))

2009 2008
$ $
211,440 218,470
7,900 37,450
- 60,750
557,091 633,531
208,357 257,200
18,240 22,430
89,002 138,209
24,472 6,400
. 1,687,402
9,722 -
1,146,224 3,061,842
102,593 98,620
12,877 18,594
(36,449) 29,671
445,581 351,528
524,602 498,413
621,622 2,563,429

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE

Reg No.138/71TAP

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2009

Note 2009 2008
$ $
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Plant and equipment 8 86,408 44,910
Current assets
Inventories 9 19,202 19,202
Receivables 10 325,374 166,659
JCFMT Fund 11 17,086 -
Cash on hand and at bank 12 6,762,210 6,169,221
7,123,872 6,355,082
Total assets 7,210,280 6,399,992
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables 13 15,513 34,265
Deferred revenue 14 587,102 434,050
602,615 468,315
Total liabilities 602,615 468,315
Net assets 6,607,665 5,931,677
REPRESENTED BY:
Accumulated fund 15 6,321,575 5,699,953
Miscellaneous funds 16 219,715 219,724
Revaluation reserve 17 66,375 12,000
6,607,665 5,931,677

The accompany notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

......................................

PRESIDENT HONORARY SECRETARY ONORARY TREASURER

Date: 29 May 2009
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
Reg No.138/71TAP

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED FUND,
MISCELLANEOUS FUND AND REVALUATION RESERVE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

Note

ACCUMULATED FUND

Balance at beginning of year

Transferred from miscellaneous fund

Surplus for the year

Balance at end of year 15

MISCELLANEOUS FUND

Balance at beginning of year

Transferred to accumulated fund

Net (decrease) for the year

Balance at end of year 16

REVALUATION RESERVE

Balance at beginning of year

Additions during the year

Balance at end of year 17

Total funds and reserve

2009 2008
$ $

5,699,953 1,286,886
- 1,849,638
621,622 2,563,429
6,321,575 5,699,953
219,724 2,095,270
- (1,849,638)
(9) (25,908)
219,715 219,724
12,000 12,000

54,375 -
66,375 12,000
6,607,665 5,931,677

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
Reg No.138/71TAP

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Surplus before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Interest income

Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes in working capital:

WONCA - deferred expenditure and assets
Inventories

Receivable

JCFMT Fund

Payables

Deferred revenue

WONCA - deferred revenue and liabilities
Miscellaneous fund

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of plant and equipment
Interest received

Net cash flows from investing activities

Net increase in cash in hand and at bank
-Cash in hand and at bank at beginning of year
Cash in hand and at bank at end of year

Note 2009 2008
$ $
621,622 2,563,429
8 12,877 18,594
(49,519) (84,086)
584,980 2,497,937
: 1,874,759
. (19,202)
(158,715) 129,659
(17,086) =
(18,752) 3,058
153,052 (89,083)
- (1,874,759)
) (25,908)
543,470 2,496,461
3 (12,175)
49,519 84,086
49,519 71,911
592,989 2,568,372
6,169,221 3,600,849
12 _ 6,762,210 6,169,221

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
Reg No.138/71TAP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2009

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Management on 29 May
2009.

1) DOMICILE AND ACTIVITIES

The College of Family Physicians Singapore (the College) is registered in the
Republic of Singapore under the Societies Act Cap 151 and has its registered
office and principal place of business at:

16 College Road
# 01-02 College of Medicine Building
Singapore 169854

The principal activities of the College are:

i) Advance the art and science of medicine.

i) Discuss medical and scientific problems

iii) Assist in providing post graduate study courses

iv) Arrange for and/or provide instructions for undergraduate or post

graduate students
v) Promote and maintain high standards of family practice of
medicine.

2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”).

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis,
except for the following assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value: certain plant and equipment, certain financial assets and financial
liabilities.

The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollars which is the
College’s functional currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS requires
managements to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
Reg No.138/71TAP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2009

2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

The fund accounts which are created for the purpose of assets creation
are include under miscellaneous and accumulated funds of the College.

New accounting standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The College has not applied the following accounting standards
{(including their consequential amendments) and interpretations that
have been issued as of the balance sheet dated but are not yet effective:

FRS 1 (revised 2008) Presentation of Financial Statements

FRS 23 (revised 2007) Borrowing Costs

Amendments to FRS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and FRS
1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Puttable  Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendments to FRS 101 First — time Adoption of Financial
Reporting Standards and FRS 27 Consolidated and Separate

Financial Statements — Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly
Controlled Entity or Associate

Amendments to FRS 102 Share-based Payment — Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations

FRS 108 Operating Segments
Improvements to FRSs 2008
INT FRS 113 Customer Loyalty Programmes

INT FRS 116 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
Reg No.138/71TAP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2009

38

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (continued)

New accounting standards and interpretations not yet adopted
{continued)

FRS 1 (revised 2008) will become effective for the College’s financial
statements for the year ending 31March 2009. The revised standard
requires an entity to present, in a statement of changes in equity, all
owner changes in equity. All non-owner changes in equity (i.e.
comprehensive income) are required to be presented in one statement of
comprehensive income or in two statements (a separate income
statement and a statement of comprehensive income). Components of
comprehensive income are not permitted to be presented in the
statement of changes in equity. In addition, a statement of financial
position is required at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
following a change in accounting policy, the correction of an error or the
reclassification of items in the financial statements. FRS 1 (revised 2008)
does not have any impact on the College’s financial position or results.

Other than the change in disclosures relating to FRS 1 (revised 2008),
the initial application of these standards (including their consequential
amendments) and interpretations is not expected to have any material
impact on the College’s financial statements. The College has not
considered the impact of accounting standards issued after the balance
sheet date.

The management Committee expects that the adoption of these FRS and
INT FRS in the initial period of application will have no material impact
on the financial statements.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the asset. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of
the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of plant and equipment have different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of plant
and equipment.

The cost of replacing parts of an item of plant and equipment is
recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the
future economic benefits embodied within the part will follow to the
College and its cost can be measured reliably. The cost of the day-to-day
serving of plant and equipment are recognised in the income statement
as incurred.
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
Reg No.138/71TAP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2009

2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2

2.3

2.4

Plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation on plant and equipment is recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives (or
leased term, if shorter) of each part of an item of plant and equipment.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

* Furniture and fittings 3 to 5 years
= Office equipment 1 to 3 years
s Qther assets 3 years

Other assets include painting, potteries, tapes, library, books and other
minor assets.

No depreciation is provided for paintings and potteries as they appreciate
in value.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and
adjusted as appropriate, at each reporting date.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. In the
case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, cost includes an
appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating
capacity. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
selling expenses.

Financial Instruments

Non-derivative instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity and
debt securities, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
financial liabilities, and trade and other payables.

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value
plus, for instruments not at fair value through profit or loss, any directly

attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, non-
derivative financial instruments are measured as described below.
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
Reg No.138/71TAP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2009
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2)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4

Financial Instruments (continued)
Non-derivative instruments (continued)

A financial instrument is recognised if the college becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are
derecognised if the college’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial assets expire or if the college transfers the financial asset to
another party without retaining control or transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset. Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are accounted for at trade date, i.e., the date that the
college commits itself to purchase or sell the asset. Financial liahilities
are derecognised if the college’s obligations specified in the contract
expire or are discharged or cancelled.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and bank deposits.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an integral
part of the college’s cash management is included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

An instrument is classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it is
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or is
designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial instruments are
designated as fair value through profit or loss if the college manages
such investments and makes purchase and sale decisions based on their
fair value in accordance with the college’s documented risk management
and investment strategies. Upon initial recognition, attributable
transaction costs are recognised in the income statement when incurred.
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value, and changes therein are recognised in the income
statement.

Held-to-maturity investments

If the college has the positive intent and ability to hold debt securities to
maturity, they are classified as held-to-maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses.
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
Reg No.138/71TAP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2009

2)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

24

2.5

Financial Instruments (continued)
Non-derivative instruments (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

The college’s investments in certain equity securities and debt securities
are classified as available-for-sale financial assets if they are not
classified in any of the other categories. Subsequent to initial recognition,
they are measured at fair value and changes therein, other than for
impairment losses, and foreign exchange gains and losses on available-
for-sale monetary items, are recognised directly in equity. When an
investment is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss in equity is
transferred to the income statement.

Other

Other non-derivative financial instruments are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares
and share options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any
tax effects.

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased (treasury
shares), the amount of the consideration paid, including directly
attributable costs, net of any tax effects, is presented as a deduction
from equity. Where such shares are subsequently reissued, sold or
cancelled, the consideration received is recognised as a change in equity.
No gain or loss is recognised in the income statement.

Impairment of assets

Financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is
considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more

events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of
that asset.
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
Reg No.138/71TAP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2009

2)

42

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5

Coliege of Family Physicians Singapore ANNUAL REPORT 2008-2009

Impairment of assets (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying amount, and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate. An impairment loss in respect of an
available-for-sale financial asset is calculated by reference to its current
fair value.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an
individual basis. The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively
in groups that share similar credit risk characteristic.

All impairment losses are recognised in the income statement. Any
cumulative loss in respect of an available-for-sale financial asset
recognised previously in equity is transferred to the income statement.

Impairment losses in respect of financial assets measured at amortised
cost and available-for-sale debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.

Impairment losses once recognised in the income statement in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through the income
statement. Any subsequent increase in fair value of such assets is
recognised directly in equity.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the college’s non-financial assets, other than
investment properties, inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable
amounts are estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its
cash-generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. A cash-
generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates
cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and groups.
Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement unless it
reverses a previous revaluation, credited to equity, in which case it is
charged to equity.




COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
Reg No.138/71TAP

NOTES TCO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2009

2)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6

2.6

2.7

Impairment of assets (continued)
Non-financial assets {continued)

Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in
the unit (group of units) on a pro-rata basis.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater
of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or cash-generating unit.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of
other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed
at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or
no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognized.

Leases
When the college is a lessee of an operating lease

Where the college has the use of assets under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are recognised in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received
are recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the total
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to the income

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under
which the company pays fixed contributions to the Central Provident
Fund on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The college has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
college’s contributions are recognised as employee compensation expense
when they are due, unless they can be capitalised as an asset.
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
Reg No.138/71TAP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2009

2)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

Employee benefits (continued)

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue
to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the College has
present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liahility.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the College and the revenue can be reliably
measured.

Members’ annual subscription are recognised when due.

Course fees (from continuing professional education and training) are
recognised when the services are rendered.

Advertising income is recognised when advertisement is placed.

Interest income is recognised as the interest accrues based on effective
interest rate method unless collectibility is in doubt.

Management fee charged by the College is recognised when due.
Finance income and expenses

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested. Interest
income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method.

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings and
unwinding of the discount on provisions. All borrowing costs are
recognised in the income statement using the effective interest method,
except to the extent that they are capitalised as being directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of as asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to be prepared for its
intended use or sale.
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
Reg No.138/71TAP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2009

2)

3)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Grants and sponsorship
Grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching condition will
be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement over the periods
necessary to match them on a systematic basis, to the costs, which it is
intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair
value is credited to a deferred income account and is released to the
Income and Expenditure Statement over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual installments.
2.12 Income tax expenses
The Society has been registered as a Society under the Societies Act.
With effect from the Year of Assessment 2008, the requirement for
Society to spend at least 80% of their annual receipts on charitable
objects in Singapore within 2 years in order to enjoy income tax
exemption has been removed. As a registered and exempt charity it will
enjoy automatic income tax exemption.
SPONSORSHIPS
2009 2008
$ $
Health Promotion Board 50,000 100,000
GlaxoSmithKline sponsorship 37,500 37,500
Ministry of Community Development, Youth and Sports - 56,700
Pfizer Pte Ltd 63,000 63,000
Alzheimer's Disease Association 10,000 -
Astrazeneca Singapore Pte Ltd 50,000 -
Corporate Partnership Management Department 17,857 -

228,357 257,200
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
Reg No.138/71TAP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2009

4) MISCELLANEOUS INCOME

2009 2008

$ $
Interest received 49,519 84,086
Management fees 15,000 15,000
Photocopy 712 989
Sundry income 10,023 9,074
Convention dinner 13,748 29,060

89,002 138,209

5) WONCA INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

The World Organisation of Family Doctors (WONCA) was held in July 2007. The
Income and expenditure of WONCA are as follows:

a) Deferred income
Note 2009 2008
$ $

Income (deferred) - 1,704,676
Receipt during the year - 1,635,656
Total receipts 5(c) - 3,340,332
Less:
Expenses (deferred) - 491,423
Expenses incurred during the year - 1,161,507
Total expenses 5(b) - 1,652,930
Net surplus transferred to

income statement - 1,687,402
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COLLEGE OF FAMILY PHYSICIANS SINGAPORE
Reg No.138/71TAP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2009

5)

WONCA INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT (CONTINUED)

b) Expenditure incurred
2009 2008
$ $

Marketing N 165,559
Communication - 30,479
Venue rental - 161,098

Professional conference organiser
management fee = 143,440
Wonca executive council meeting - 81,819
College operating expenses - 116,251
Finance costs - 105,557
Booth setup cost - 10,868
Exhibition operating expenses - 4,783
Professional exhibition management fee - 14,713
Speakers expenses - 91,889
General décor and branding expenses B 39,740
Audio visual expenses - 81,962
On-site manpower costs - 3,000
Delegate pack - 48,346
Conference programme refreshments - 135,320
Opening ceremony expenses - 131,526
Miscellaneous expenses - 80,871
Contribution to Wonca world - 205,709
Note 5(a) - 1,652,930

c) Revenue received
2009 2008
$ $

Exhibition booths - 242,392
Delegate registration fees - 1,368,708
Sponsorship - 1,403,997
Donations - 10,000
Bursary - 79,010
Miscellaneous - 171,168
Advertisement - 42,744
Bag insettion - 10,020
Room rental - 1,770
Interest received - 10,523
Note 5(a) - 3,340,332
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6)  STAFF COSTS

Retrenchment benefit
Salaries and bonus
Central provident fund
Insurance

Medical expenses

48

2009 2008

$ $
- 5,677
85,113 77,017
12,592 11,119
3,596 3,545
1,292 1,262
102,593 98,620
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7) ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2009 2008
$ $
Advertisement - 1,290
Accountancy fee 17,545 10,600
Auditors' remuneration 3,000 3,000
Other auditors = 882
Bad debts written off (Wonca) 12,229 "
Bank charges 202 400
College Mirror - printing charges 22,162 39,023
Consultancy fees (Note 18) 25,000 23,200
Continuing medical education 58,499 19,465
Convocation dinner 14,464 28,235
E-learning . 2,674 -
Family medicine fellowhship programme - 400
Family medicine training scheme
honorarium expenses 7,000 -
Family medicine training programme 10,420 7,147
Fines and penalty 67 169
Graduate diploma in family medicine fund expense 8,700 9,702
Graduate diploma in family medicine 55,869 28,979
Internet/telephone charges 3,264 3,416
Maintenance/security charges 4,052 3,872
Membership fee B 2,458
Miscellaneous expenses 13,794 8,852
Master of Medicine in family medicine programme B 41,751 21,736
Office expenses 3,041 3,268
Photocopy - 807
Postages 13,893 5,856
Printing and stationery 8,399 11,360
Refreshment 5,257 3,066
Rental of office equipment 7,387 7,353
Rental of office premises 58,116 52,783
Repair and maintenance 2,121 1,746
Singapore Family Physician-printing charges 38,804 43,713
Training 749 -
Transport 1,663 1,753
Utilities 5,459 4,497
Valuation fee - 2,500
445,581 351,528
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8)

50

9)

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

FURNITURE & OFFICE OTHER

2009 FITTINGS EQUIPMENT ASSETS TOTAL
$ $ $ $
Cost/valuation
At beginning of year 135,909 201,437 90,513 427,859
Fair value adjustment - - 54,375 54,375
Additions - - - -
Disposals - = - -
At end of year 135,909 201,437 144,888 482,234
Accumulated depreciation
At beginning of year 131,409 196,852 54,688 382,949
Charge for the year 1,741 2,116 9,020 12,877
At end of year 133,150 198,968 63,708 395,826
Net Book Value
At end of year 2,759 2,469 81,180 86,408
FURNITURE & OFFICE OTHER TOTAL
2008 FITTINGS EQUIPMENT ASSETS
B $ $ $
Cost/valuation
At beginning of year 130,683 194,488 90,513 415,684
Additions 5,226 6,949 - 12,175
Disposals - - - -
At end of year 135,909 201,437 90,513 427,859
Accumulated depreciation
At beginning of year 130,683 178,984 54,688 364,355
Charge for the year 726 17,868 - 18,594
At end of year 131,409 196,852 54,688 382,949
Net Book Value
At end of year 4,500 4,585 35,825 44,910

Other assets include paintings, potteries and library books. The potteries and
paintings are stated at valuation of $90,200 (2008 : $35,825).

INVENTORIES
2009 2008
$ $
Consist of:
Accessories - Polo T-shirts and Ties 19,202 19,202

The carrying values of inventories approximate their fair values.
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10) RECEIVABLES

2009 2008
$ $
Security deposit 6,200 6,200
Prepaid expenses - 18,399
Account receivable 309,169 132,055
Interest receivable 10,005 10,005
325,374 166,659

The carrying values of receivables approximate their fair values.

11) JOINT COMMITTEE OF FAMILY MEDICINE TRAINING (JCFMT) SECRETARIAT

2009 2008

$ $
Funding reimbursements received 219,507 246,938
Less: Expenditure incurred
Operating costs {36,754) (38,018)
Manpower costs (165,667) {208,920)

(202,421) (246,938)
Net expenditure to be reimbursed 17,086 -

The JCFMT Secretariat was set up to review the training needs of Family

Physicians.

The Ministry of Health (MOH) provided funding for the Secretariat to start up
and is to provide funding for recurrent expenditure in the first three years.
Subsequently funding will be reduced from 80% to 50% of projected total
expenditure for the current year to prepare the Secretariat for eventual self-

funding.

The funds are disbursed on a reimbursement basis.
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12) CASH ON HAND AND AT BANK

2009 2008
$ $
Cash at bank
Current account 962,210 5,668,739
Fixed deposits 5,800,000 500,432

6,762,210 6,169,221

The average maturity period for fixed deposits is 18 months (2008:32 months)
and the average interest rate at the end of the financial year is 0.64%
(2008:2.8%).

The fixed deposits include monies received from funds held under miscellaneous
funds (Note 16).

13) PAYABLES

2009 2008
$ $
Accrued charges 12,806 30,562
Account payable 2,707 3,703
15,513 34,265

The carrying values of payables approximate their fair values.

14) DEFERRED REVENUE

2009 2008
$ &
Subscriptions received in advance 360 6,660
Advertisement revenue received in advance - 63,000
Course fees received in advance 586,742 364,390

587,102 434,050
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15) ACCUMULATED FUND

Balance at beginning of year
Transferred from miscellaneous funds:
- Journal fund (Note 16.1)
- College Development and
Research fund (Note 16.2)
- Postgraduate Family Medicine
Library fund (Note 16.4)
Surplus for the year

Balance at end of year

16) MISCELLANEQUS FUNDS

Journal fund (16.1)

College development & research fund (16.2)
Victor Louis Fernandez fellowship fund (16.3)
Postgraduate family medicine library fund (16.4)
Albert & Mary Lim award fund (16.5)

Graduate diploma in family medicine fund (16.6)

16.1) Journal Fund

Balance at beginning of year
Transferred to accumulated fund (Note 15)
Balance at end of year

16.2) College Development & Research Fund

Balance at beginning of year
Transferred to accumulated fund (Note 15)

Balance at end of year

2009 2008
$ $
5,699,953 1,286,886
> 38,555
- 878,826
- 932,257
621,622 2,563,429
6,321,575 5,699,953
2009 2008
$ $
30,891 30,891
565 574
188,259 188,259
219,715 219,724
2009 2008
$ $
- 38,555
. (38,555)
2009 2008
$ $
- 878,826
" (878,826)
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16) MISCELLANEOUS FUNDS (CONTINUED)

16.3) Victor Louis Fernandez Fellowship Fund

2009 2008
$ $
Balance at beginning and end of year 30,891 30,891
16.4) Postgraduate Family Medicine Library Fund
2009 2008
$ $
Balance at beginning of year - 932,257
Transferred to accumulated fund (Note 15) = {932,257)
Balance at end of year - -
16.5) Albert & Mary Lim Award Fund
2009 2008
$ $
Balance at beginning of year 574 18,871
Utilised during the year (9) (18,297)
Balance at end of year 565 574
16.6) Graduate Diploma in Family Medicine Fund
2009 2008
$ $
Balance at beginning of year 188,259 195,870
Utilised during the year - (7,611)
Balance at end of year 188,259 188,259
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17)

18)

19)

20)

|
REVALUATION RESERVE

2009 2008
$ $
Balance at beginning of year 12,000 12,000
Additions during the year 54,375 -
Balance at end of year 66,375 12,000

Revaluation reserve arose from revaluation of potteries and paintings.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The College had the following related party transactions on terms agreed

. between them as follows:

2009 2008
$ $
Consultancy fee paid to members of
management committee 25,000 23,200

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At balance sheet date, the college was committed to making the following
payment in respect of operating lease for office premises and photocopier
machine with terms of more than one year.

2009 2008
Lease which is payable:
Within one year 82,818 90,689
More than one year but less than five years 165,636 27,739
248,454 118,428
RISK MANAGEMENT

The main risks arising from the College’s financial management are interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Council reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

Interest rate risk

The College is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes
on fixed deposits.
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20)

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Credit risk

The College involves the risk that counterpartiecs may be unable to meet the
terms of their agreements. The College has no major concentration of credit risk.

The College places its cash and fixed deposits with creditworthy institutions.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net
of any provision of losses, represents the College’s maximum exposure to credit
risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the College monitors and maintains a level
of cash and bank balances deemed adequate by the Management to finance the
College’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Foreign currency risk

The College has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
financial statements represents their respective net fair values.
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I
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14.
I5.
16.
17.
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19.
20.
21.
22,
23,
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26.
27.
28.
29.
30.
3l
32,
33.
34.
35.
36.
37.
38.
39.
40.
41.
42,
43.
44.
45.
46.
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Clinical Prof Chee Yam Cheng
Dato’ Dr Balasundram R

Dr Geeves Richard B

Dr Kwa Soon Bee

Dr Lam Sian Lian

Dr Lim Kee Jin

Dr Syed Mahmood Bin Syed Hussain

Prof Lim Pin
Prof Tock Peng Chong Edward
Professor Fabb Wesley E

AJProf Chan Nang Fong
Dr Cheong Seng Kwing
Dr Chia Tee Hien

Dr Chong Phui-Nah

Dr Chow Mun Hong

Dr Chua Chi Siong

Dr Cruz Marie Stella P

Dr Doraisamy Gowri

Dr Ee Guan Liang Adrian
Dr Goh Choon Kee Shirley
Dr Goh Khean Teik

Dr Goh Soo Chye Paul

Dr Ho Chih Wei Sally

Dr Kang Aik Kiang

Dr Koh Choon Huat Gerald
Dr Kwan Yew Seng

Dr Kwong Kum Hoong
Dr Lau Hong Choon

Dr Lee Kheng Hock

Dr Lee Soon Seng

Dr Leong Soh Sum Helen
Dr LewYii Jen

Dr Lim Fong Seng

Dr Lim Lee Kiang Julian

Dr Lim Mien Choo Ruth
Dr Ling Yee Kiang

Dr Loke Kam Weng

Dr Loke Wai Chiong

Dr Ng Chung Wai Mark
Dr Ng Joo Ming Matthew
Dr Ng Lai Peng

Dr Ngeow Colin

Dr Ong Chin Fung

Dr Ong Chooi Peng

Dr Ong Jin Ee

Dr Pang Sze Kang Jonathan
Dr Seng Sheh Ling Joyce
Dr Seow Hoong Wei Gabriel
Dr Siaw Tung Yeng

Dr Siew Chee Weng

Dr Sim Kok Ping

Dr Soon Shok Wen Winnie
Dr Swah Teck Sin

Dr Tan Boon Yeow

Dr Tan Chee Beng

Dr Tan Chin Lock Arthur
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47. DrTan Choon Seng Gilbert
48. Dr Tan Kim Eng

49. DrTan Kok Leong

50. Dr Tan Ngiap Chuan

Sl DrTan See Leng

52. Dr Tan Yew Seng

53. Dr Tan Yong Hui Colin

54. Dr Tan Yu Sing Lucienne
55. Dr Tang Wern Ee

56. DrTay Ee Guan

57. Dr Thng Lip Mong Barry
58. Dr Tse Wan Lung Derek
59. Dr Wong Tack Keong Michael
60. Dr Yee Jenn Jet Michael
Fellows

Life Members

I AJProf Cheong Pak Yean

2 A/Prof Goh Lee Gan

3. AJProf Lim Lean Huat

4. Dr Chan Swee Mong Paul
S. Dr Chang Ming Yu James
6. Dr Hanam Evelyn

7. Dr Lee Suan Yew

8. Dr LeongVie Chung

9. Dr Lim Kim Leong

10. Dr Ling Sing Lin

1. Dr Loh Wee Tiong Alfred
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13. Dr Tan Cheng Bock Adrian
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15. Dr Wong Kum Hoong
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5. Dr Chang Tou Liang
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10. Dr Chin Khong Ling
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19. Dr Goh Chin Ai Moira Claire
20. Dr Goh Kian Peng
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Dr Hwang Siew Wai

Dr Kalaimamani Kanagasabai
Dr Khemani Neeta Parshotam
Dr Khoo Beng Hock Michael
Dr Kiran Kashyap

Dr Koh Kheng Keah Philip
Dr Koh Tse-Chung Kevin
Dr Koh Wee Boon Kelvin
Dr Kong Kum Leng

Dr Kurup Bina

Dr Kwan Pak Mun

Dr Lau Chin Hoh

Dr Lee Kok Leong Phillip
Dr Lee Michael

Dr Lee Mun Tuck

Dr Lee Sueh Ying Patricia
Dr Leong Choon Kit
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Dr Liao Kian Huat

Dr Lim Bee Geok

Dr Lim Chien Wei

Dr Lim Hui Ling

Dr Lim Hwee Boon

Dr Lim Kah Choo Carol
Dr Lim Lee Min Dale

Dr Lim Shueh Li Selina

Dr Lim Sinn Ling

Dr Lo Yoke Hwa Penny

Dr Lok Ying Fang

Dr Long Mei Ling

Dr Low Chee Wah Mark
Dr Low Cheng Hong Charity
Dr Low Kee Hwa

Dr Low Mun Heng Gerard
Dr Lui Woei Sen

Dr Lum Chun Fatt

Dr Murugasu Deirdre

Dr Ng Chee Lian Lawrence
Dr Ng May Mei

Dr Omar Bin Saleh Talib
Dr Poon Beng Hoong

Dr Quah Hui Min Joanne
Dr Rukshini Puvanendran
Dr See Toh Kwok Yee

Dr Seet Po Choo Cynthia
Dr Shah Mitesh

Dr Shiau Ee Leng

Dr Shivcharan Kaur Gill
Dr Sng Wei Kwan

Dr Soh Soon Beng

Dr Soh Yew Chye Albert
Dr Soo Wern Fern

Dr Suresh Ramchand Mahtani
Dr Tan Beng Teck

Dr Tan Chek Wee

Dr Tan Heng Kwang

Dr Tan Kee Wang

Dr Tan Kok Heng Adrian
Dr Tan Kok Kheng

Dr Tan Ming Ying Michelle
Dr Tan Swee Lian Cecilia
Dr Tan Woei Jen Michelle
Dr Tay Guan Yu Jeff

Dr Tham Tat Yean

Dr Tong Jia Jong Stephen

93. Dr Tsou Yu Kei Keith

94. Dr Tung Yew Cheong

95. DrVasanwala Farhad Fakhrudin
96. Dr Wee Chee Chau

97. DrWee Kien Han Andrew

98. Dr Wee Soon Heng Christopher
99. DrWong Ern Ling Helena

100. Dr Wong Fook Meng Wilson
101. Dr Wong Kay Wye Sabrina

102. Dr Wong See Hong

103. Dr Wong Sin Hee

104. Dr Wong Song Ung

105. Dr Wong Ted Min

106. DrWong Tien Hua

107. Dr Yap Soo Kor Jason

108. DrYii Hee Seng

109. Dr Yong Molly

110. Dr Yung Thomas Charlotte Kim

Collegiate Members

Life Members

Dr Chia Yuit Keen

Dr Chiong Peck Koon Gabriel
Dr Chok Ching Chay

Dr Goh King Hua

Dr Hia Kwee Yang

Dr Ho Gien Chiew

Dr Lim Bee Hwa Kitty
Dr Lim Chong Sing

Dr Lim Chun Choon

Dr Lim Liang Boon

Dr Loo Choon Yong

Dr Soh Fook Thin Philip
Dr Tan Swee Teck Michael
Dr Tay Soi Kheng

Dr Wee Sip Leong Victor
Dr Yeo Siam Yam
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Collegiate Members

Malaysia

l. Dr Chung Sin Fah
2. Dr Hew Kin Sun
3. DrYoong Foh Yan

Collegiate Members
Other Countries

l. Dr Lim Shyan
2. Dr Yu Wai Hong
3. Dr Soon Siew Pheng Roy

Ordinary Members

Singapore

Dr Abdul Bashir Bin Adbul Kadir
Dr Abdullah Amir Adhha

Dr Adam Patrick
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Dr Ang Kiam Hwee

Dr Ang Koh Siong

Dr Ang Lai Lai

Dr Ang Li-Shan Constance
Dr Ang Pei-Ming Samuel
Dr Ang Poh Kit

Dr Ang Seng Bin

Dr Ang Sing Jim Roy

Dr Ang Su Lin Vivien
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Dr Au Kah Kay

Dr Auw Tiang Meng

Dr Aw Tuan Kiat

Dr Aw Tuan Soo
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Dr Chan Wah Mei
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Dr Chang Chean Seng Stephen
Dr Chang Chee Chea

Dr Chang Li Lian

Dr Chao Tar Liang Anthony
Dr Chao Wen Pin Cynthia
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Dr Chau Chwen Hwe

Dr Chay Wai Mun Jason
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Dr Chee Boon Ping

Dr Chee Fang Yee
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Dr Chee Hsing Gary Andrew
Dr Chee Lee Ann
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Dr Cheng Geok Min Ruby
Dr Cheng Hua Yong Geraldine
Dr Cheng Kah Ling Grace
Dr Cheng Soo Hong

Dr Cheok Soo Gek Felicia
Dr Cheok Soo Teck Harry
Dr Cheong Cher Chee David
Dr Cheong Chin Lee Angela
Dr Cheong Hong Fai

Dr Cheong Kwok Chi Adrian
Dr Cheong Kwok Keong

Dr Cheong Lee Ching

Dr Cheong Wei Ling

Dr CheongYin Phoon Karen
Dr Chew Ban Soon

Dr Chew Ee Hern Kevin

Dr Chew Him Lim Madeleine
Dr Chew Kuok Ming

Dr Chew May Ling

Dr Chew Sung Boon

Dr Chia Hong Chye Vincent
Dr Chia Ling Ling Valerie

Dr Chia Swee Heong Daniel
Dr Chia Wei Meng Vincent
Dr Chia Woodworth Clarice
Dr Chia Yuen Tat

Dr Chiam Choon Guan Eric
Dr Chiang Wing Chiong

Dr Chin En Loy Conrad

Dr Chin Huay Feng

Dr Chin Koy Nam

Dr Chin Siew Pang

Dr Chin Wai Meng Andrew
Dr ChinYee Choong

Dr ChinYee Lee
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Dr ChinYong Seng
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Dr Chio Han Sin Roy
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Dr Chng Woei
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HERALDRY OF THE COLLEGE

he upper portion of the badge of the College consists of a golden lion in a passant stance
superimposed on the chief which is red in colour.

" he lion represents our nation of Singapore. Red is the colour of blood which is the
precious liquid on which life depends and which is our mission to save.

he lower portion of the badge consists of a green cross superimposed on a white shield.
The green cross symbolizes the humanitarian mission of our College. White is the colour of
purity which is our aim.

'nthe green cross is superimposed an open book and a caduceus. The open book
represents knowledge and continued learning and the caduceus is the recognized symbol

for the art of healing.




